
1 Q

REDACTED FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

Mr. Gerbrandt, you have never
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2 before testified as an expert in fan interest

3 for certain types of sports teams, have you?

4

5

A

Q

That's correct.

In fact, you have never before

6 offered an opinion as an expert based on the

7 results of consumer surveys, have you?

8

9

A

Q

Incorrect.

In which instance have you done

10 that as an expert?

11 A Most recently, in the Real DVD

12 case, which I think is actually currently

13 being decided on in California. It was data

14 based on -- data that was collected from over

15 a million personal computers.

16 Q And we talked about that during

17 your deposition, didn't we, sir?

18

19

A

Q

That's correct.

And you indicated that was

20 historical data. Correct?

21 A Well, some of it was fairly

22 current, but yes, it did -- I think that whole
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1 survey process spanned 12 months, maybe a

2 little bit longer.
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3 Q And you commissioned no additional

4 studies in forming your opinion in that case.

5 Correct?

6 A That is correct. I used the data

7 that had already been collected.

8 Q The table that you rely upon to

9 form your expert opinion in this case are full

10 of statistical data, are they not?

11 A They're -- well, any piece of data

12 is considered a statistic in and of itself.

13 It's a data -- the Quantum software that was

14 used to do the cross-tabs, automatically runs

15 a series of statistical calculations. It's

16 just built into the program, and it

17 automatically runs those tests. And there is

18 virtually every column, or many of the columns

19 are tested for various levels of -- like to

20 the 90 and 95 percent confidence level.

21 Q Mr. Gerbrandt, I'm sure I've asked

22 a poor question, so let me try again. Do you

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 form the basis of the opinion you offer today

2 based upon surveys contained in tables of

3 statistical data?

Page 7315

4 A I certainly I mean, to -

5 JUDGE SIPPEL: That's all right.

6 You've answered the question. That's all.

7 THE WITNESS: I think so. I mean,

8 it's -- I form my opinion based on survey

9 data, and data is -- any data can be

10 considered a statistic, so I think the answer

11 is yes.

12 BY MR. KIM:

13 Q Okay. Any data can be considered

14 a statistic. Is that your testimony?

15 A No, it's my response to your

16 question, is that -

17

18 under oath.

19

JUDGE SIPPEL: Yes, but you're

THE WITNESS: I -- well, I

20 appreciate that, and I'm trying to give you as

21 accurate an answer as possible. The tables

22 contain statistical data. I would agree with
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(202) 234-4433



REDACTED FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

1 that.

2 BY MR. KIM:

Page 7316

3 Q And your opinion flows from those

4 data in those tables. Correct?

5 A It flows from calculations drawn

6 from that data. That is correct.

7 Q You refer to several surveys that

8 purport to measure fan interest. Correct?

9 A I'm referring to survey questions

10 that asked a very specific question, "What

11 Major League Baseball team do you tend to

12 follow the most"? So, my opinions are based

13 on that unaided question, yes.

14 Q And you offer an interpretation of

15 the results. Correct?

16 A I offer the results. What it

17 shows is that there's very, very low fan

18 interest in the Orioles, virtually no interest

19 in the Nationals. So, yes, and that was in my

20 report.

21 Q Mr. Gerbrandt, do you reach

22 conclusions based upon the results of those

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 surveys of fan interest?

2 A I missed the first part of that

3 question. Could I have it back, please?

Page 7317

4 Q Sure. Absolutely. Do you offer

5 conclusions based upon those surveys of fan

6 interest?

7 A I use them to compare -- I used

8 that data -

9

10

Q

A

Can you answer my question?

I'm actually trying to answer the

11 question.

12 JUDGE SIPPEL: Yes, but there must

13 be an ability to go yes or no on that one. I

14 mean, just ask it again, please.

15

16

17 carefully.

18

19

THE WITNESS: Okay.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Listen to it very

THE WITNESS: I'll try.

BY MR. KIM:

20 Q Mr. Gerbrandt, do you draw your

21 conclusions based upon the surveys of fan

22 interest?

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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2

3

4

A

Q

REDACTED FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

In part, yes.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Okay.

BY MR. KIM:

Mr. Gerbrandt, do you recall being

Page 7318

5 deposed by me about a month ago?

6

7

A

Q

I do.

Do you recall being asked the

8 following question, and giving the following

9 answer, "Question: And you used those surveys

10 of fan interest to conclude what limited

11 consumer demand there would be for MASN. Is

12 that right?" And your answer was,"Correct."

13 Do you remember that?

14

15

16

17

A

Q

A

Q

I do.

Do you stand by that testimony?

I do.

You rely heavily upon the reports

18 of those surveys for the opinions you offer

19 today. Is that true?

20 A I think I just said that, yes.

21 Q In offering the opinion that you

22 offer for this Court, what was your null

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 hypothesis?

2 A The null hypothesis was that there

3 was no -- that there was -- I'll have to go

4 back to the study that was originally created

5 by Dr. Gatseos, in which that was laid out,

6 but my recollection is that the null

7 hypothesis was that there was interest in the

8 Orioles and the Nationals.

Page 7319

9 JUDGE SIPPEL: How do you spell

10 that no, no hypo -

11

12

13

THE WITNESS: N-U-L-L.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Null.

THE WITNESS: Null. But, again,

14 I'm trying to remember the precise way that

15 that null hypothesis was articulated. It's

16 been a while since I've looked at it.

17 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, you weren't

18 asked to do that, so you just put -- your

19 answer to the question is yes. Is that right,

20 that it was -

21 THE WITNESS: Well, no, that I

22 he asked me what it specifically was, and I'm

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 saying I'm having a little difficulty going

2 back and remembering what the specific wording

3 of-

Page 7320

4

5

JUDGE SIPPEL: Okay. I'm sorry.

THE WITNESS: -- the null

6 hypothesis was.

7

8

9 Q

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right.

BY MR. KIM:

Would that create a two-tailed

10 test, or a one-tailed test?

11 A Well, I'm not a statistician by

12 trade. I'm an analyst, as I've explained.

13 But from my knowledge of statistics, I believe

14 it creates a one-tailed test.

15 Q And then you would agree to accept

16 or reject the null hypothesis based upon the

17 data that you tabulated. Correct?

18 A Well, this data didn't have to be

19 subjected to that kind of test. I mean,

20 you're talking statistical probabilities. But

21 if you were to do that, I suppose.

22 Q That's not what you did here,

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
(202) 234-4433



REDACTED FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

1 though, is it?

2 A I personally did not conduct a

3 statistical probability. I allowed -- that's

4 what the Quantum software does in the

Page 7321

5 tabulation. It's a very simply survey

6 question that asks people, just as the North

7 Carolina survey did, what's your interest in

8 these teams, on an unaided basis, and we're

9 not testing for probabilities here. We're

10 testing for specific responses, and to rank

11 their interest. And that's what the Quantum

12 software did, and provided specific

13 percentages for each response.

14 Q Mr. Gerbrandt, do you remember my

15 question?

16 A You asked me if I had performed

17 certain statistical tests on this, and I

18 didn't.

19 Q So, it's your testimony that you

20 actually formulated a null hypothesis, but you

21 did not attempt to accept or reject it.

22 Correct?

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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What I'm saying is that in

Page 7322

2 creating the study -

3 JUDGE SIPPEL: Well, is he

4 correct? You keep going around on that. Is

5 he correct?

6 THE WITNESS: Well, I personally

7 did not do it. That's what I retained Dr.

8 Gatseos to do.

9

10

11 Q

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right.

BY MR. KIM:

But he didn't sign the opinion in

12 this case, did he?

13

14

A

Q

That is correct. I did.

So, your testimony is that you

15 formulated, along with Dr. Gatseos, a null

16 hypothesis, but you did not go on to determine

17 whether to accept or reject it. Correct?

18 MR. KIRK: Objection;

19 mischaracterizes his testimony. He never said

20 he formulated -

21 JUDGE SIPPEL: I'll sustain the

22 objection. Try it again.

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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BY MR. KIM:

Who formulated the null hypothesis

Page 7323

3 in this case?

4 A My recollection was that that was

5 part of what Dr. Gatseos did when he designed

6 the study.

7 Q So you never personally formulated

8 a null hypothesis in this case. Correct?

9 A I personally did not. That's

10 correct.

11 Q Isn't it true that in determining

12 how to interpret statistical data, one needs

13 to establish a null hypothesis?

14 A Not necessarily, not when you're

15 looking at this kind of data. Yes, if you

16 were doing a let's say if you're on trial

17 where you're trying to test whether or not a

18 particular drug reaction exceeds the random

19 probability of something happening by chance,

20 then the kinds of tests that you're suggesting

21 take on great merit, and are very important.

22 On the other hand, when you're simply asking

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 a very simple survey question, the kind of

2 statistical test that you're referring to,

3 become far less relevant, because they are

4 designed simply to benchmark relative levels

5 of interest in a particular topic.

Page 7324

6 Q We'll get there in a second, Mr.

7 Gerbrandt.

8 JUDGE SIPPEL: Don't give him any

9 more than he's asking for.

10

11

12

13 Q

THE WITNESS: Okay.

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right?

BY MR. KIM:

Is it fair to say that you don't

14 have a -- you did not a predetermined alpha

15 variable?

16

17

A

Q

That is correct.

And you didn't have an acceptable

18 type one error that you had defined.

19 MR. KIRK: I'm going to object,

20 Your Honor. We're putting Mr. Gerbrandt on as

21 an expert media analyst. We're not putting

22 him on as a statistician, or an expert in

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 econometrics. And that's what Mr. Kim is

2 trying to demonstrate.

Page 7325

3 MR. KIM: Your Honor, I'm entitled

4 to probe the basis of his expertise. He is

5 relying upon tables of statistical data.

6 JUDGE SIPPEL: I'm taking this as

7 mostly voir dire, but go ahead. It does -- go

8 ahead, anyway. I'm overruling the objection.

9 Go ahead, sir.

10

11

MR. KIM: Thank you.

BY MR. KIM:

12 Q Do you remember my question, Mr.

13 Gerbrandt? Is it fair to say you did not

14 calculate the acceptable type one error?

15 A I did not. Again, that was part

16 of what I relied on Dr. Gatseos for.

17 Q Okay. Is it fair to say you don't

18 know much about statistics at all?

19 A That's relative question. I would

20 not proffer myself as a statistician. I am

21 certainly familiar with a fair amount of

22 statistics, but it's not -- I'm a media

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 analyst, and I analyze the outcome of surveys

2 that were overseen by statisticians.

Page 7326

3 Q You never took a statistics course

4 in college, did you, sir?

5

6

A

Q

I did.

Which statistics course did you

7 take in college?

8 A I took a statistics course when I

9 was at Colorado State University, I believe it

10 was in 1972.

11 Q Was that a standalone statistics

12 course, sir?

13

14

A

Q

It was.

Is it true you recently took a

15 course on statistics.com?

16

17

A What I have done is, there are -

MR. KIM: Your Honor, that's a yes

18 or no question.

19 JUDGE SIPPEL: Yes. Is that

20 are you familiar with statistics.com?

21

22

THE WITNESS: I am.

JUDGE SIPPEL: In what context?

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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THE WITNESS: Statistics.com is an

Page 7327

2 online resource, and I've been learning some

3 of the new statistical software packages that

4 are on the market. And they offer training in

5 how to use some of the new statistical

6 software packages, called among them Mini Tab,

7 Data Desk.

8 BY MR. KIM:

9 Q Is it true that when we spoke last

10 month during your deposition, you couldn't

11 interpret numerous parts of the studies that

12 you relied upon?

13 A There was some -- absolutely.

14 There was some confusion as to exactly what

15 certain numbers, referring to whether they

16 were percentages, or whether they were

17 integers. And, so, there was certainly a

18 confusion in a couple of the areas. And I've

19 since gone back and double checked.

20 Q Is it true you couldn't tell me

21 how certain questions were presented to a

22 participant of the survey?

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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I was -- since I didn't take the

Page 7328

2 test online, I wasn't sure exactly how they

3 had been presented online. That is correct.

4 Q And you also couldn't tell me what

5 some of the numbers in the surveys meant.

6 Correct?

7 A Well, again, we had a fairly long

8 discussion, as I recall, during the deposition

9 as to whether something was a percentage or an

10 integer. And it at the deposition I

11 couldn't recall. I did go back and double

12 check, and I had a chance to go back and

13 review the data.

14 Q Do you recall me asking you about

15 what a number 25.62 meant?

16 A Well, if you show me the data. I

17 don't know if I recall that particular number,

18 but-

19 Q Do you recall being asked the

20 following question, and giving the following

21 answer. "Question: What is 25.62? Answer:

22 I believe it is the arithmetic mean of 10, 21,

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 36, 13, and 4." Do you recall that testimony?
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2 A I seem to recall -- if that's what

3 I said in the deposition, that's what I said.

4 I seem to -- I reviewed my deposition, so that

5 sounds correct.

6 Q And, in fact, that's not correct

7 at all, is it?

8

9

A

Q

I don't think so, no.

Okay. In fact, the mean of 10,

10 21, 36, 13, and 4 is 18.8, isn't it?

11

12

A

Q

Correct.

Do you recall that I asked you

13 whether a table in your report reflected the

14 total number of games watched by certain fans

15 who expressed a high interest in Major League

16 Baseball?

17 A I don't recall whether you used

18 the phrase "total number of games", but we

19 certainly had a discussion about the number

20 about a question that asked respondents how

21 many games they watched.

22 Q And I asked you what conclusions

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 you could draw from that table. Correct?

Page 7330

2 A Again, I don't recall you asking

3 me an open-ended question like that. We did

4 have a discussion about the table, yes.

5 Q Do you recall you asked for a

6

7

8

9

10

piece of paper?

A Yes, I think so.

Q And do you recall that you then

asked for that question to be read back by the

court reporter three times?

11 A So I could write it down, yes, I

12 think.

13 Q And then after you did all those

14 things, do you recall telling me that you

15 didn't understand the question, or the math?

16 A That is correct. In looking at

17 the data in the table, I was having trouble

18 figuring out exactly the question you were

19 asking, and how it related to those numbers.

20 JUDGE SIPPEL: You don't have to

21 give him that much information.

22 THE WITNESS: No, I was explaining

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 to him what -

Page 7331

2 JUDGE SIPPEL: He didn't ask for

3 you to explain it to him.

4

5

6 Q

THE WITNESS: Okay.

BY MR. KIM:

So, it's fair to say that you

7 could not interpret that table for me.

8 Correct?

9 A At the time, I was having

10 difficulty with that table. That's correct.

11 Q Do you recall me asking you

12 questions about consumer demand?

13

14

A

Q

I do.

And do you recall your first

15 answer was that you didn't know what consumer

16 demand meant?

17 A I think I asked you in what

18 context.

19 Q Do you recall saying that you

20 didn't know what consumer demand meant?

21 A I don't recall saying I don't know

22 what consumer demand means. I think I
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1 asked-

Page 7332

2

3

4

5 Q

JUDGE SIPPEL: All right.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

BY MR. KIM:

Do you recall being asked the

6 following question, and giving the following

7 answer. "Question: Sure. I believe you

8 mentioned that we had not defined what

9 consumer demand is, so I'm asking to you, give

10 me a definition of consumer demand. Answer:

11 That's your term. I was asking you what it

12 meant. Question: You don't know what consumer

13 demand is? Answer: I'm asking you what it

14 means to you. Question: I think I am asking

15 you a question, sir. Do you know what

16 consumer demand is? Answer: I said we haven't

17 defined consumer demand, so I don't know how

18 to answer that question. I haven't looked at

19 any data for either of those markets, but we

20 haven't defined, and you haven't defined what

21 consumer demand is." Do you recall being

22 asked those questions, and giving those

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 answers?

Page 7333

2 MR. KIRK: Your Honor? JUDGE

3 SIPPEL: Yes?

4 MR. KIRK: Can the witness be

5 presented, if he'S going to be going through

6 his deposition, his deposition transcript?

7 JUDGE SIPPEL: Certainly. That's

8 fair. Thank you very much. This is the

9 transcript of testimony of Dr. Larry Gerbrandt

10 dated April 10, 2009.

11 MR. KIM: For the record, Your

12 Honor, I proffer to the witness and to the

13 Court a copy of the transcript of his

14 deposition. And what I just read from was

15 from page 111, line 20, through page 112, line

16 11.

17 JUDGE SIPPEL: Okay. Let's get

18 back there and see what we find. Here we are.

19

20

21 11.

22

THE WITNESS: 111, which line?

MR. KIM: 20, through 112, line

THE WITNESS: Correct. I was

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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1 trying to understand the context in which you

2 were asking the question. Not what consumer

3 demand was, but in what context, and how to --

4 I was trying to understand your question, and

5 how to apply.

6 BY MR. KIM:

Page 7334

7 Q Okay. But when I kept asking you

8 that question about consumer demand, you said

9 that consumer demand was irrelevant, didn't

10 you?

11 MR. KIM: Let the record reflect

12 the witness is reading his testimony from his

13 deposition.

14 THE WITNESS: yes. I, actually,

15 ultimately responded to you in line -- on page

16 113, line -

17 MR. KIM: Mr. Gerbrandt, we're

18 going to get there.

19

20

MR. KIRK: Objection, Your Honor.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Yes. Yes. Sustain

21 the objection. Just wait until you hear a

22 question.

Neal R. Gross & Co., Inc.
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BY MR. KIM:

So, is it true that you said it

Page 7335

3 was irrelevant?

4 A I said it was -- what I said here,

5 it was irrelevant in connection to the

6 questions you had asked. I was having trouble

7 matching up -- I having trouble understanding

8 your question. Ultimately, I did answer it.

9 Q Then is it true that you read your

10 report for several minutes, and agreed that

11 you actually discuss consumer demand in your

12 report?

13 A I referred back to my report.

14 That is correct?

15 Q And then you found that you

16 actually discussed consumer demand in your

17 report. True?

18 A That is correct.

19 Q And that's when you admitted that

20 you knew what consumer demand meant. Correct?

21 A No, I said I agreed. You asked me

22 the question, "Are you referring to consumer
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1 demand?" And I said, "Yes."
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2 MR. KIM: Your Honor, on page 113

3 of his deposition, lines 3-16.

4

5 Q

BY MR. KIM:

Mr. Gerbrandt, do you recall being

6 asked the following question, and giving the

7 following answer. "Question: Do you know what

8 consumer demand means? Objection by Mr.

9 Tollin: Asked and answered. Answer: It would

10 mean different things in different context.

11 Question: with respect to your testimony that

12 you are prepared to give in this case?

13 Answer: Yes, in my conclusion, I state there

14 is -- that there is limited demand for MASN's

15 core professional baseball programming in

16 Harrisburg and Southwestern Virginia, and a

17 limited demand for MASN's secondary college

18 programming. Question: Are you referring to

19 consumer demand? Answer: Yes." Do you recall

20 being asked those questions, and giving those

21 answers?

22 A I do.
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So, you'll understand the consumer

Page 7337

2 demand term if I use it today, won't you, sir?

3 A Yes, in relation to the testimony.

4 That is correct.

5 Q You formed the surveys that you're

6 talking about today. Correct?

7

8

9

A

Q

A

Yes.

And it's -

Well, let me amend that. I was

10 part of the process in forming the surveys. I

11 did not formulate them alone.

12 Q Isn't it true that you had the

13 ability to change any question that was asked

14 on the survey?

15

16

A I suppose I could have, yes.

JUDGE SIPPEL: Now, did you ask

17 him whether he had the ability?

18 MR. KIM: Yes, sir. To change the

19 questions that were asked on the surveys.

20 JUDGE SIPPEL: Is that -- and you

21 said -- yes, okay. You answered in the

22 affirmative. Does that mean the same thing as
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